
United ZVations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
FORTY-SECOND SESSION

Official Records·

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 31st MEE'fING

SECOND COMMITTEE
31st meeting

held on
Monday, 9. November 1987

at 3 p.m.
New York

Chairman: Mr. OUDOVENKO (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic)

later: Mr. GAJENTAAN (Netherlands)

CONTENTS

AGENDA ITEM 83: OPERATIONAL ACTIVITIES FOR DEVELOPMENT (continued)

(a) OPERATIONAL ACTIVITIES OF THE UNITED NATIONS SYSTEM: REPORT OF THE
SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued)

(b) UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME (continued)

(c) UNITED NATIONS CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT FUND (continued)

(d) UNITED NATIONS TECHNICAL CO-OPERATION ACTIVITIES: F.EPORT OF THE
SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued)

(e) UNITED NATIONS VOLUNTEERS PROGRAMME (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 82: DEVET..OPMENT AND INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC CO-OPERATION (continued)

(c) EFFECTIVE MOBILIZATION AND INTEGRATION OF WOMEN IN DEVELOPMENT: REPORTS
OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued).

(e) ENVIRONMENT (continued)

(f) DESERTIFICATION AND DROUGHT (continued)

·This fW)n:1 is subject 10 com=ction. ComcUOlI$ should be sem under the sigDllUre of a member Df the dele
gation concerned ..it1li~ ""~ ..~d ofIM dtu. ofpubliaJliOft 10 the Chief DC the 0ffieiaI Reconls EditinJ SecriccI.
room DC2-7SO. 2 United Nltions P1_. and i1lCOl'JlOflttd in I ccpy of lhc reronI.

COlT«tions will be i..~ Iller lhc end oC tilt session, in I scpar1Ite fas<kle for each Comminee.

87-56814 0828S (E)

Distr. GENERAL
A/C.2/42/SR.31
12 November 1987

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

/ ...



A!C.2/42/SR.3l
English
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 3 p.m.

AGENDA ITEM 83: OPERATIONAL ACTIVITIES FOR DEVELOPMENT (continued) (A/42/3, 136,
178, 293, 354, 359, 381, 411, 417, 603, 604, 677)

(a) OPERATIONAL ACTIVITIES OF THE UNITED NATIONS SYSTEM: REPORT OF THE
SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) (A/42/207 and Corr.l, 326 and Add.1-3, A/42/290)

(b) UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME (continued) (E/1987/25; A/42/597/Rev.l)

(c) UNITED NATIONS CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT FUND (continued) (E/1987/25)

(d) UNITED NATIONS TECHNICAL CO-OPERATION ACTIVITIES: REPORT OF THE
SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) (E/1987/25i A/42/ll0 and Add.l, 275, 305, 387;
DP/1987/45 and Md.1-3)

(e) UNITED NATIONS VOLUNTEERS PROGRAMME (E/1987/25)

1. Mr. LICHTINGER (Mexico) commended the note of the Secretary-General on
operational activities of the United Nations system (A/42/326 and Add.1-3). In
partiCUlar, the report prepared by Mr. Kurt Jansson (A/42/326/Add.l) dealt with
questions of global importance lor the better management of operational activities
for development. First, the United Nations system should continue to respect the
exclusive right of recipient Governments to formulate their national development
plans and to choose the way in which external assistance was integrated in their
strategies.

2. Second, in order to enable the UNDP country programme" to fulfil its role as a
frame of reference for all sources of United Nations system technical assistance
and as a mechanism for promoting a more coherent and co-ordinated approach in
operational activities, three basic changes must be made: the role of UNDP as a
central financing body must be strengthened; programmable resources must be
increased SUbstantially; and the methods and practices of UNDP programming should
be simplified and made more flexible to meet the specific needs of each developing
country. In that respect, the proposal for an indicative programme of the United
Nations system for Governments should be seriously considered as a possible
alternative to the current method of programming and co-ordinating operational
activi ties.

3. Third, co-ordination of assistance and international technical co-operation
was a primary responsibility of each recipient Government. His delegation was
concerned at certain new tendencies which could weaken Governments I ability to
plan, control and co-ordinate external technical assistance and their sovereignty
and self-determination in formulating economic policies. One such tendency was the
insistence that UNDP should preside over the so-called "round tables". There was a
need to find new mechanisms which could efficiently meet short-term co-ordinating
needs and, at the same time, prepare and strengthen the infrastructure in order to
enable Governments to carry out such a task by themselves. In addition, the

/ ...



A/C. 2/42/SR. 11
El'qllsh
Page 1

(Mr. Lichtinger, Mexico)

efficiency and colltplementarity of the various bodies and agpncies of the united
t'lations system in international economic co-operation must he enhanced.

4. Fourth, then! was a need for decentralization in programming and
decision-making. His delegation was concerned at the establishment, at UNDP
headquarters, of new committees entrusted with the task ur approving projects, and
at the intention of several donor countries to centralize further the work of the
UNDP Gover lnq Council and to Crel!te new subsidiary bodieo with. restricteCl
membershi ps.

5. Fifth, the ,Jansson report des· : I. bed the advantages of joint programming, and
greater effort should be made in order to ensure that those advantages were llsed.

6. The report I:ailed, however, to mention the role of the regional commissions in
operational activities. The commisslons could be of great assistance in
establ.1shing a "lItional system of Information on itevelo~ent I\nd increadng
technical co-opecation among devel~-ing countries. The Secretary-General should
review that problem in depth on th"O! basis of the guidelines established in General
Assembly resolution 32/197.

7. Lastly, the international community should increase its donations in order to
provide greater assistance to the least developed countrie£; however, that should
not affect the level of assistance provided to the rest of the developing world.

8. His delegat.lon was concerned that no progress had been made in including the
developing countries in a modern and ('qlJitab](~ process of international
co-operation. In recent years, the unit-ed Nations system had decreased its
purchases of equipment and services from those countries, and age1"cies, field
workers and major donor countries were reluctant to create the necessary ateitudes,
conditions and infrastructure which would enable them to participate more actively
in co··operation and international assistance. Although technical co-operation
among developing countries was a hIghly impor.tant activity, it 'lad received little
i'ttention or funds from the intern,!Itional community.

9. Creative and innovative efforts must be made to modernize the concept of
operational activities for development. That would have to be a slow but steady
and coherent process. The role of the Economic and Socia: Council and the General
Assembly must be strengthened i.n the political guidance and ~o-ordination of
operational activities in their entirety.

10. M~. TURYANSKY (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that in 1986, UNDP
had adopted a number of measures to improve its oper~tional and organization~i'

work, heighten its effectiveness and ensure the fuller use of existing resouic~s.

Technical assistance programming had been better co-ordinated with the national
plans of the countries concerned, and technical assistance projects had been
carried out more efficiently and objectively. His delegation noted with
s,3tisfaction that UNDP had increased it.s assistance to national liberation
movements in Africa and to the Palestinian people.

/ ...



A/e. 2/42/~R.:n
F.nq lish
Paq", <\

(Mr. Turyansky, Ukrainian SSR)

11. However, there were also negative tendencies in the I'rogra~me's activities.
The Programme had continued to strengthen its unjusti fiable relations wit~

international monetary and financial institutions, and had atti\ched increasinq
importance to the development of the private sector in the developing cO'lntr ies and
to the development of the industrial potential ~f small enterprises. At th~ same
time, there had been no initiative to assist the public sector, despite the f~ct

that that sector played a decisive role in the development of the national
economi es of developi nq count ri "'R. By igl or ing the public s£'ctor, UNOP was
violating United Nations resolutions on technical assistance for economic
development,: particular General Assembly resolution 34/117.

12. A new approach to the solution of world economic problems was needed, throl1gh
the development and implementation of the cuncept of international economic
~.ecurity, in which international economic relations would be ba3ed on just,
mutually advantageous and mutually acceptable principles, creating conditions for
peaceful coexistence and co-operation among all Governments, regardless of their
social system or ievel of de'Jelopment, for the social ind economic progress of each
country in particular and of mankind as a whole. {mop could make a valuahle
contribution to the developm~nt of that concept.

13. The Ukrainian fiSR understood the developing countries' interest in finding new
sources of financing for operational activiti?s. The most realistic way to solve
that problem was to undertake practical measures for the reduction of military
expenc1iture and to usp part of the savings for development. The recent Conference
on the Relationship between Disarmament and Development had shown what great
opportunities che international community had to increase assistance to developing
countries ~or their social and economic development.

14. The Ukra1nian SSR participated in the organization of effective co-operation
with the developing countries in diverse spheres of economic act1vity. Nearly
30,000 citizens from 25 countries were currently studying in the Republic's
educational institutions. Moreover, several hundrp.d of the Republic's teachers
were training national personnel in the developing countries themselves. Seminars
and practical work for specialists from developing countries cont1nued to he held
on a regular oasis, and scientists and scholars of the Academy of Sciences of ,he
Ukrainian SSR conducted joint research with their foreign colleagues 1n more than
400 different areas.

1<;. The Ukrainian SSR was pr .....oared to co-operate more closely with lINDP and
regretted that its nationals were not involved in th ~i'lministration or field
activities of the Programme.

16. Mr. RA! Xingji (China) said that, although the recent pledging conference for
operational activities for development had resulted in a marginal increase in the
general resources, the total amount of available resources was far from sufficient
to meet the growing needs. On the whole, the amounts pledged by a few major donor
countries had remained at the same level as the previouu year. Moreover, the
percentage of multilateral aid in official development assistance had dropped

/ ...



/\/C.2/42/SH.11
Engl i sh
Page "

r;lliIrply in [('ct'nt years. 1115 del~qation was quite concerned ill thp appilI nt
Inability of the devt~lopment system to meet thp needs of many developinq ':ountries,
In particular the least developed countries.

17. Chlna wpleomed the fact that the United Nations development system had
relnfo[cpd its co-ordination at the headcyuarters lpvel over the past year. 'I'he
,JOint Consultative Group on Policy (JCGP) - comprising thp United Nations
()pVl'lopment Programme (UNDP), the World 1"ood Programme, the United Nations Fund for
Population Activlties (UNFPA) and the United Nation:; Chllclren's'Fund (lJNICE/·') - had
made eflolts to co-ordinate its position on certain C1uef,tions rplating to
opf'rat lonal activi 'cit>s for development.

lB. :;ince Mr. W. H. Draper had assumed the office of UNO!' Administrat.or, he had
mad., unrplenting pfforts to improve the organizational structure, ensure programme
qUillit·y ilnd raise efficiency. Progr.ess had been registered in three new areas:
non-governml'ntal organizations, women in development and the private sector. His
delegation hoped that UNOI' would continue to explore other modalities ot
co-operation in order to meet the needs of the developing countries. In addition,
the sma.lIUNDP-·administered funds should adopt more effective and flexible methoc!s
dlld fihould modify regulations unfavourable to developing countrit·s with a view t.o
PTlcou ..·aqing more devp.loping countries to participate in their act.vities.

1<). lIis delegation commended the remarkable progress of the UNICEF Child f,urvival
and Development Revolution as well as the policies and measures which UNll'EF had
adopted in the area of women in development. However, China was concerned abcut
the financial problems of UNICEF. Althouqfl flexibility had (~nablp.d UNICEF to keep
its project-delivpry rate at a comparativelY high level, such flexibility was
inconsistent with the existing United Ncltions financial rules and regulations. His
delegation hoped that UNICEF would act in full co-operation with the Board of
/\uditon; to ascertain the causes of existing prohlems, improve management, adopt
thl' necessary remedial measures and establish a financial system in keeping with
hoth t.he exist Ing United Nations financial rules and regulations and t.hp act.ual
prilct ice of UNICEF.

20. Chlna and the Department of 'I'echnical Co-operation for Development hac!
continlled to maIntain a close and sound relationship of co-operation. 'J'he recent
I>eijinq Sympo!,ium on Rural Energies and Rural Electrification had been a complete
SUCCPfiS. I t was h(~arteninq to see that UNDP and that Department: had made iX1Sit i ve
conl.[Jbutions to the promotion of technical co-operation among developing
cou n 1. r I t' S •

21. Chlna highly cOlTUlltmded UNFPA for its work in sepkinq a solution to the
pOpulatlon 'luestion by helping developing countries carry out demographic resl'arch,
cllmpde pr oIlat.ioll statistics and formulate population policies. China belif'veo
that popul ution growth must be in keeping with social and economic devel, ,t. ano
r;t!ould be kept in harmony with resources utilization, environmental probe .)0 and
t.hp maintenance of the ecological balance. China's policy of family plannIng,
carried oul on the hasis of education and voluntary participation, had not only
'lainI'd the !,llpport. of all the nationalities of China, but had also recpived

/ ...



A/C.2/42/SH.11
gngURh
Page (,

(Mr. nai Xlnqji, China)

extensive support from the international community. There was no douht that a
rat iona 1 so lilt inn to Chi nd' s po!?U la t ion problem would he a maior con tr Ibu tion to
stabilizing the world's population.

22. His delegation regrEtted that the United States Government had repeatedly
withheld its contributions to UNFPA, and had distorted and a':tllcked Chinit'R
population policy, blatantly interfered in China'R internal affairs and endeavoured
to change the mandate and direction of UNFPA. That must not be tolerated. The
attitude and behaviour of the United States Government ran counter to the relevant
General Assembly resolutions and violated the normA of international law. lIis
delegation '1incerely hoped that the United Stlttes Government would relinquish it9
preiudice <if, soon as possible and rejoin the interni'ltional community in pr,>moting a
stable world population.

23. ~ROSI\l,ES (Honduras) said that his Government attached great importancp to
the operationdl .::lctivities of the United Nations, clnd welcomed the increased direct
contributions to the specialized agencies indicated in the Director-General's
report. De9pite its economic difficulties, it was maintaining its own nodest
contribution as a tolten of its belief in multilateral co-operation.

24. His delegation noted with approval the increase of 17 per cent in expenditure
on technical co-operation activities indicated in the report of the
Secretary-General <DP/1987/45/Add.3). It also accepted tl.at 50 per cent of the
resources should be spent on the natural resources and energy sectors, but it
regretted that only a small amount went on the purchase of equipment in developing
countries.

25. Non-governmental organizations had made a commendable increase in their
assistance to the developing countries, but contrihutions to organizations giving
aid to refugees and in cases of natural disasters had unfortunately increased only
moderately. Honduras took in refugees and needed assistance in discharging its
responsibilities to them.. His delegation endorsed the point made in the
Director-General's report that food aid for development should not disrupt
productive activitie~ and that full use should be made of reqi,~al and South-South
co-operation.

26. His delegation endorsed wh~t was said in the report about the need for the
JCGP to ensur2 more systemlltic exchanges at che Headquarters level on a broader
agenda. Tt also thought that consideration should be given to the nee,l tn set up
an ind, pendent unit to administer each of the funds at present managed by lJ'mp.

27. The note by the Secret,ary-General on the United Nations Development Fund for
Women (IlNTFEM) (A./42/597/Rev.l) indicated that prior ty would he given to urhan
women as workers in the informal sector in the Participatory Action Plan for Latin
America and the Carihbean. His delegation endorsed that priority, and noted with
satisfaction the good results already achieved in some countries. It also welcomed
the joint efforts o[ UNIFEM and 'JNOP to facil.itate the participation of women In
larqe-scale proiects in Honduras.

/ ...



A/C. '2/42/SR.:n
Eng 11.1h
Page 7

28. Mr. MULLER (Australia) naid that his de legation had read the ,lansBon report
with interest, not least hecause Australia had provided extra-budgetary fun~g for
the case studies. Many of the report's findings were reinforred by Australia's own
reviews of the United N~tions development system. In view of th~ great variety in
the use of funds and in national priorities ana needs, it was hardly surprising
that the system had problems in operating with a aingle model of operational
activities or that the UNDP country programme had failed to provide a frame of
reference for all sources of United Nations technical assistan,ce.

29. There was no simple answer to the issue of programming and co-oldination. His
delegation had welcomed the introduction of the National Technical Co-operation
Assessment Programmes (NaTCAPs) and it was concerned to read in paragraph 40 of the
,Jansson report that the NaTCAP voncept had not taken root. It agreed with the
proposal in paragraph 23 of the Director-General's report that the JCGP should have
more systematic exchanges at Headquarters level on a broader agenda. His
delegation could also agree with the suggestion made in paragraph 28 of the Jansson
report that an inter-agency study should be initiated, and welcomed the
Director-General's indication in his statement to the Committee that he would be
pursuing the issue. Broader programming might be undertaken on an experimental
basis in selected countries with a view to developing programming mc:els.

30. The issue of harmonization of procedures was not confined to the United
Nations system, but extended to bila~eral donors as well. He note.' in that
connection that the UNDP C~verning Council had requested the Administrator to
suhmit proposals with a view to encouraging donors to adopt standard modalitil's.
His delegation ha~ doubts about the recommendation made in the Jansson report for
greater decentralization of operational activities, especially the suggestion that
UNDP should aim to abolish the in-country approval limit on ~ strictly ~elected

basis within approved country programmes. Such a change might superficially
improve management efficiency, but it risked undermining policy oversight and
quality control. It might also exacerbate existing weaknesses in project
identification and/or formulation.

31. His delegation l lpported the proposal made in the Janss::>n report that the
leadership role and operational functions of resident co-ordinators should he more
exactly defined in an inter-agency agreement. Problems of co-operation beL'"een
resident co-ordinators and aGency representatives did !'ot usually result fr>m
personal factors hut from institutional problems. Ris delegation was pl~ased that
the Director-~p eral intended to pureue the issue in the Administrative CommIttee
on Co-ordination. Appointments to the position of resident co-ordinator :nust be
based on merit and his delegation awaited w:,-th interest a report on the ,JCGP's
views on unified field servicing. Th,-re was clearly a need for further detailed
discussion of the Jansson report in governing bodies and the Economic and Social
Coul',::i 1.

32. The Director-General had proposed that in the years between the triellnial
policy review tile Economic and Social Courlci 1 and the General .~ssf"mbly should limi t
their discussion of operational activities to only one or two issues, and that the
scope of the Director-General's report itself should be similarly restrictad. His

/ ...



II./C. ;~/42/SR.H
F.nqli~h

Page 8

(Mr. Muller, Australia)

delegation disagreed with the latter proposal, but thought that the restriction of
the consideration of the item by the Council deserved further study. It might in
fact be p(lfIs 1,ble to narrow the co-ordination focus of the Council's deliberations
while ensuring that the broader perspective was also covered each year through
debate in the General Assembly, and thus to reduce much of th~ current duplication
in the consideration of operational activities in the Council and the Assembly.

H. Mr. FIELD (United Kingdom) said his delegation hoped that the CommIttee's
debate would rel,nforce the work begun in the Economic and Social Council in the
summer and build on the improvement in operational activities resulting from
resolution 41/171. It endorsed the Director-General's view that the Jansson report
would provide a useful basis for the consideration of important problems. Some of
the issues would need follow-up in the governing bodies of the United Nations
system, and the Economic and Social Council should also have the opportunity to
discuss the report.

34. What was loosely described as "co-ordination" should be a fundamental hahit of
daily life, especially when operational activities were changing and the
traditional approaches to technical co-operation were being challenged.
Co-operation required the active support of all concerned, with the aim of
harnessing the potential of the system in a collective effort. There was room for
a top-down strategy in creating the framework and a bottom-up approach centred on
field activities. The report on co-ordination (A/42/232) referred in paragraph 77
to the need to enhance the Director-General's roleJ his delegation agreed and
thought that it would be useful, for example, for the Director-General to chair all
the meetings of the Consult .ve Committee on Substantive Questions (Operational
Activities) •

35. There was concern that the purpose of the country programme - to provide a
framework for coherent action - had not been realized. The United Nations system
now had no less than five separate programming mechanisms, yet it failed to deliver
its assistance in a co-ordina~ed manner. Four of the mechanisms were preparatory
in nature, but the country programme should be seen as an end product, as a
five-yeal programme of action. It might be better to refer to a "Government
programme" for technical co-opP dtion, which would requJ,re the participation of all
agencies concerned. A broader-based approach from the start cOlJld provide the key
to realizing the promise of the JCGP and NaTCAP processes. The Director-General
might wish to examine the possibility together with the agencies and UNDP.

36. The needs of ::he developing countries were paramount, and programmes should be
planned to produce the most cost-effective resulte. His Government had long
attached particular importance to UNDP's crucial funding and co-ordinating role,
and it was concerned at the further erosion of that role by the si13rp increase in
extrabudgetary contributions to the specialized agencies. The fragmentation of
resources into a variety of small units increased the administrv ive costs and made
co-ordination more difficult. Of course the donors must CO-OI linate their
activities, but that applied equally to the specialized agencies. Proqress might
be achieved if all truRt funds were initially channelled through UNDP.

I ...



A/C.2/42/SR.31
Engliflh
Page 9

(Mr. Field, United Kingdom)

37. Since ~he focus of operational activities was the delivery of technical
assist~nce, fiel~ staff, especially resident co-ordinators, should receive the
necessary support. UNDP's n,'w system for consideration of project proposals
coincided with the system used by the Ov~rsea9 Dev~lopment Administration for the
United Kingdom's hi lateral programme. His delegation was pleased to note that the
new system h~d speeded up the approval prucess.

38. In view of the importance of UNDP's role, the UNDP resident representative
should normally be designated the resident co··ocdinator, and UNDP must provide the
best people available. Various suggestions had been made to that end, includinq
the creation of a deve,opment service. His delegation welcomed the way in which
UNDP had responded by introduc '1q a roster of suitable candidates.

39. Governments valued the operational activities of the United Nations system,
for it was worth more than the sum of Its financial resources. That attitude was
demonstrated by the increase in those resources, which was a further incentive to
seek improvements in the way they were deployed in the cause of development.

40. Mr. MAIGA (Mali) said that the debate on operational activities provided an
opportunity to assess the efforts made by the international community through th~

United Nations to ease the economic and social problems of many Member States.
Many bodies had been created in the United Nations system with the specific purpose
of solving those problems, and his delegation remained convinced that the goal
stated ill Article I, paragraph 3, of the Charter could not be attained without
political will and the necessary financial support for operational activities. The
Programme of Action for African Economic Recovery a~d Development 1986-1990 was an
appcopriate framework for the mobilization of funds for Africa, for most United
Nations bodies had already udopted action plans which took into account the
priorities set out in the Programme of Action.

41. The administration of operational activities was just as important as the
provision of funds. Resolution 41/174 indicated the main lines of project
management and reflected the wish of developing countries to take part in
operational activities, especially through the Ule of local skills and materials.
Tn the effort to improve the co-ordination of deielopment activities emphasis
dhould be given to co-ordination in the secretariats and in the field,
strengthening of the role of resident co-ordinators, and broader co-operation
between United Nations bodies and other sources of assistance.

42. A new phase in the co-operation between Mali and UNDP had begun in 1987 with
the start of the fourth IPF cycle. The main goals were to strengthen the country's
planning and management capacity, increase food and livestock production, harness
water and increase training and jobs. New co-operation programmes had also been
prepared, or were being prepared, with a number of other Unic~d Nations
institutions. Mali was grato ,11 for all the assistance it rece'·,ed.

/ ...



Ale. 2/42/SH.11
Engl ish
Page 1 ()

(Mr. Maiga, Mali)

43. 'l'he approaching end of the Third U,ited Nations Development Decade - rightly
described as a lost decade for de"elopnle,~t - underlined the central role which the
United Na~ions ought to play in economic and 50cial development. 'l'he development
opportunities of the developing countrie!i I1lURt be increased. Operationi\l
activities were essential to that end and would also help to secure the
international balance needed for the devf,lopment of the 'Jorld economy.

44. Mr. LOPEZ (Philippines) noted that, although the increase in tne volume of
resources made available to the grant as"istance organizations of the United
Nations system had increased, the share of t ...'':al official development
assistance (ODA) contributed to those organizations had declined from 1979 to
1986. His delegation believed that a significant port-ion of total ODJ\ must go for
the financing of United N.ltions operational activities, g ... ven the developi!"']
countries' clear preference lor assistance from multilateral sources, a preference
confirmed in the Jansson report.

45. lIis delp.gation was pleased that the international community was attachir,g
increasing importance to the financing of activities related to food aid; however,
measures must be taken to make optimum use of the resources available through thp
Worl~ Food Programme (W!"P). Recipient countri(~s must devise a mfOans of ensuring
that food aid reached those in need immediately. He supported the proposal by the
Committee on Food Aid Policies and Proqran~es (CFA) that food aid should be
incorporated in national development plans of recipient countries and believed that
donor countries should pledge food assi~,tance for multi-year periods in order to
facilitate planning by recipient Governments. International agencies must
co-ordinate their respective activities so (hot proiects formulated by developing
countries could obtain appropriate international support. In that connection, he
supporu~d the reconunendation of CFA that the roles and fAnctions of food aiel should
be explicitly considered and included in the preparations of World Bank
consultative group meetings and UNDP round tables.

46. Co-ordination 01 United Nations activities in the field continued to create
difficulties, perhap[; because of problems inherent in having the UNDP resident
representative serve as the resident co-ordinator for all Huch ac ' \fities. At the
country level, some specialized agencies believed that their mandates exceed('d that
of UNDP, since their organizations had hroader membership; consequently, the
representatives of those agencies tended to act independently in their dealings
wi th host Governments. Whi le his delegat ic,n belIeved that the Secretary-Genera 1
should designate country co-ordinators, it understooc that Governments might finrl
it convenient to deal with the representatives of the specialized agencies
directly. Resident co-ordinators were often limited in their. ability to help host
Governments assess development assistancp needs and to provide them wi th the rangp
of support that other agencies could offer. 'I'he dominant role played hy the UNDP
resident representative in the preparation of country programmes deprived the
representatives of other agencies of an opport.unity to contribute to that process.

47. His delegation had noted a number of other difficulties relatin(~ to
co-ordinatIon and had particular rni~.qiving<; ahout the maintenance of the p ...oject

I ...



A/C. 2/42/SR. 31
English
Page 11

(Mf. Lopez, Phi lippines)

approval limit of $400,000. The need to refer ew·n projects costing less th.ln that
amount t.o UNDP headquarters for final iJpproval negated the sovereign right of
recipient countries to determine their own needs and priorities and contravelled the
spiri t of the lY70 Consensus.

46. Since the concept of operational activities had evolved over the years, a new
conceptual framework might have tc be devised that would ensure a continuum between
technical and capital assistance to develop,ng countries and would clearly
deline~te the responsibilities and functions of all the United Nations agencies and
bodies concerned. His delegation supported the work done by the JOGP to
co-ordinate the operdtional activities of the United Nations system, and suggested
that that work might be expanded. United Nations agencies and bodies might also
work jointly with bost Governments in the formulation of comprehensive country
programmes.

49. Because of its commitment to the operational activities of the United Nations
system, the Philippine Government, notwithstanding its current economic situation,
had maintained its pledges for those activities at the previous year's level.

50. Mr. Gajentaan (Netherlands) took the Chair.

51. Mr. SIr..GH (India) said that the spirit of partnership which had characterized
the operational activities of the United Nations system over the years must be
preserved and developed as the Organization strove to meet the challenges of
technical co-operation in the future. Of major concern to his delegation was the
current level of resources provided for operational activities. While the overall
situation appeared to have stabilized, the bleak prospects for any significant
increases in the near future were sure to have an adverse impact on the ability ef
the United Nations system to provide technical assistance. He therefore urged all
countries, particularly those whose contributions were relatively low in comparison
with their capacity, to res~nd to the Director-General's appeal by increasing
their contributions to the grant organizations of the United Nations system. His
own country, which had increased its level of contributions for 1966, contributed
mOle for operational ativities than did several developed indust ial1zed countries.

52. The Jallsson report on the operal 10nal activities of the United Nations ~ stem
was useful, but the inclusion 'f additional case studies would facilitate further
in-depth consideration of the ;sues involved.

53. The ~fficiency of operational activities must be measured in terms of their
consistency with the development plans and priorities of recipient countries. In
fact, national Governments were best placed to ensure such consistency. In India,
for example, government execution of some projects had not only been cost-effective
and improved programme delivery, but made optimum use of local skills and
expertise. United Nations resident co-ordinators should respond to requests from
recipient Governments and play a more active role in co-ord inat ing activi ties and
programmes of the specialized ag~ncies and in ensuring that projects funded by UNDP
were consistent. with agreed objectives.

I ...



A/C.2/42/SR.11
English
Page 12

(Mr. Singh, lmila)

54. His delegat ion was disappointed by cur rent pat.terns of procurement, and
believ~ that greater use should be made of the capabilities of developing
countries. In that connection, he st.rongly supporte1 the activities of the
Inter-agency Procurement Services Unit and hoped that the organizations of the
United Nations system would continue to work to that. end.

55. India attached particular importanl"€ to the role of UNFPA, which had supported
the country's population programme. As the agency responsible for implementinq the
World PopuI<ltion Plan of Action, UNFPA needed the backinq of all count.ries, and he
urged that extraneous considerati"ns should not deter any country from providing
support. In view of the findings of the report of the World Commission on
Environment and Development, his delegation believed that UNFPA should focus
greater attent ion on the relat ionship between populat LOn and envi ronment.

56. His delegation attached great importance to UNICEF programmes in gener"l and
to the Child Survival and Development Revolution in particular. He acknowledged
tl~ support which UNICEF had provided to his own counttY's universal child
immunization programme, and urged all Governments to continue their support to that
prais~worthy agency. It was to be hoped that improved programme delivery by UNICEF
would be accompanied by improved financial management and administration.

57. Mr. JaSSE (Nepal) agreed that serious thOl~ht must he given to the form
operational activities for development would t .. ke by the turn of the century. Such
consideration should not, however, divert attention from the year-to-year
programming of operational activities, especially for countries whose development
needs were urgent. His delegation was concerned that the modest increase in the
total disbursement of aDA registered in recent years could not be maintained. He
welcomed the increased assistance extended to sub-Saharan African countries, hut
expressed the hope that the future would see a corresponding rise in aOA to Asian
least developed countries, whose economic plight was hardly less acute.

58. The implications of the growing trend towards multilaceral funding, which
included funding by regional banks outside the United Nations system, must he
carefully assessed in the context of United N~tions operational activities.
Non-governmental organizations should be encouraged to continue their disbursements
of grants to developing countries fo humanitarian and development purposes. In
view of the current importance of food aid as a modality for financing operational
activities, there was a need for donors and recipients to integrate such assistance
with other forms of development assistance, particularly since food aid was
provided largely on an ad hoc short-term basis.

59. Gi,ven the declining share of (lOA channelled through UNDP, the Proyramme's role
8S the central funding mechanism tor operational activities had become open to
question. The increase in fin,mcial support for the Programme in 1986 and 19B7 had
been encouraging, althouqh pl.·('·ws miqht ~;til1 fdl1 short of resource targets.

60. lie welcomed the efforlo; by lJNlJP to h" 1p developing countries set up
early-warning system~; to forestall eCOIl(1I111C reve[;('~; and the ProqrallUT1e's policy of

/ ...



A/C. 2/42/SR. 31
English
Page 13

(Mr. Josse, Nepal)

helping developing countries stimulate activities in the private sector. He shared
the view that most environmental problems in the developing world were the result
of unmet basic human needs, and therefore support~d the Programme's call for the
inclusion of sound resource management plans in developing countries.

61. He noted with satisfaction that the Department of Technical Co-operation for
Development was currently in sound financial health and that the Depar~ment's

activities in the fields of natural resources and energy had increased considerably.

62. The United Nations Capital Development Fund (UNCDF) had helped the Government
of Nepal implement plans designed to ~eet the population's basic needs. His
delegation was therefore grateful to a.U donors to the Fund and was encouraged to
learn of the increase in the Fund's activities throughout the world.

63. His delegation had always attached great importance to the operational
activities of UNFPA and appreciated its efforts to increase awareness of the rQle
of population in developm~nt in Nepal. The substantial increase in contributions
to the Fund for 1980 was therefore welcome, although it was unfortunate that a
principal donor had not contributed to the Fund for two years in a row.

64. The activities of UNICEF had also had a significant impact in Nepal. At a
time when half the population of the developing world was under 15 years of age and
the standards of living of third-world children were deteriorating, his delegation
endorsed the UNICEF concept of "adjustment with a hun~n face". The Nepalese
Government and UNICEF shared many programme objectives and concerns, particularly
in the a~ea of women's education and the training of p£imarY.school teachers. His
delegation firmly endorse~ the recommendation contained in paragraph 82 (f) of the
Jansson report (A/42/326/Add.l).

65. Nepal had always rec~gnized the value of the United Nations Volunteers
programme, having both benefited from and cont~ibuted volunteers to the programme.
His delegation was thus pleased to note that the UNDP Governing Council had, at' 'its. ~.

thirty-fourth session, decided to expand the use of United Nations Volunteers .'
significantly. It was to be hoped that due consideration would be given to the
recruitment of volunteers from least developed countries.

66. Mr. ABRAH~ (Czechoslovakia) emphasized the importance of increasing the
effectiveness of operational activities, which were an important means of promoting
the economic and social development of developing countries. The extent to which
such activities contributed to those countries' independent economic development
should be regarded as a basic cri terion as far as the effectiveness of assistance
was concerned. The 1970 Consensus was a vital prerequisite of successful UNOP'
activities, since it undoubtedly created suitable conditions for fruitful
co-operation between doveloping and industrially advanced countries with different
social and economic systems.



A/C.2/42/SR.31
I':ng 1 ish
P~e 14

(Mr. Abrahim, Czechoslovakia)

67. The r?lease of funds spent on armaments would he Ip to accelerate the economic
development of all countries. Accordingly, the group of socialist countries had
issued a joint declaration during the thirty-fourth session of the UNDP Governing
Council, on the relationship between technical assistance, disarmament and
development. He reaffirmed the positiolls contained therein.

68. UNI1P proqrammes must. be geared to individual economic sectars within
developIng countries .. whilst respecting national sovpreiqnty. The role of the
State in socio-economic devf'lopment had been confirmed by many United N;,t ~ons
resolut ions. Operat ional activi ties should not gJ.ve p:eference to one-Sll~ed m0dels
for the lI,anac;ement and dew'lopment of national economies, exp~rif'nce having shown
that, in many spheres, the private sector r:ould not, by any means, subst~tute the
public secto~.

69. His delegation favoured a strengthening of the rolf> of the Economic and social
Council as the central intergovernmental co-ordinating body, responsible also for
the co-ordination of operational activities. The co-ordinating role of UNDP should
be increased to strengthen effectivt! co-ordination between UNDP and thf> specialized
aqencies, witt. resident co-or<iinators being accorded greater power, all of which
should help to increase the effectiveness of assistancp given to devf.'Utling
count r i es.

70. lIis delegation supp0rted greater involvement of the developing countries in
opetat.ional activities, and the assignment of increas'2d responsibility for
co-ard inat irm to the ir Governments. Th(~re was also a neen to increaf'e purchase!> of
commod.' ties and services from those countries, and to make use of, accumul ated
vo lunt· a ry cont ri bUl ion sin nat iona 1 cu r renc ies. His ('ove .nment W,' 5 concerned about
its own underutili.zed contrihution; it han therefore intensified its contact:s with
the Inter-agency Procurement Ser vices Uni t and the execut ing agenc ies and had
ascertained that there were no formal obstacle!:' to the drawing of funds in n2,t lanal
cllrrencif's.

71. A comprehensive multidisciplinary approach to the development of. human
resources was ;'\ significant component of assistance to developing countries.
Accordingly, Czecboslovakia was setting up a trust fund within UNDP to train
ecr,nomics specialists from devf'lopinq countries.

72. Czechoslovakia's assistance to developing countries was detailed in document
A/42/603. Goodwill was an important plement in promoting the greatf~r effectiv(,nes!,
of operational actiVities, and his delegation deplored document A/42/38l, ,ubmitted
by several advanced market-economy countries and containing an out-of-context
r;omparison of statistical data, as a'1 example of the undermining of confidence and
cOllstructive co-operation.

7]. Cz"ch,,:;]nvakLl fully supported the strategic aims of UNICEF' and sought to
contribute, through active participation, to the solution of urgent problems filcinq
womell dt¥\ ('hi ldl('n in devpl0l'inq ,·ountrit·!~. Tt plannect to hold a conference in
I'JHH.

/ ...



A/C.2/42/SH.]l
Enqlish
Paqp 1 r',

"74. Mr. KOFFI.EH (Austria) said that 1987 hilcl bp"n il df·cU;ive YPdL. ~;illc" th('
sevenU, ~;eEi5ion of llNCTAIl, there had been pncouldq inq deve lopments wi th rpqard t.o
relations betw(·(·n the de '('loping and industrialized countries. it was now
recognized not only that economic and secial development could he approachpd in a
v_:dety of ways, but that the main eesponsihility lay with the developilll, count.ries
themselves. The Dru'ldtlanc! repo. t II?d €-mphc"lf;tzed the 1 inks between df>ve lopment and
environment, questioning ~~e extel\t to which development could he IOl-'i.lsured in
economic teems.

75. Since Austcia itself foc'lsed its attention on the pooeest and least. c·evelopf>d
countries, he welcomed the emphasis tht~y weele' hping given in ~Ferational

activities, adding that the ut.most attention should also be paid to t.he least
fa")ured qro",ps in society, particuL~Lly wOIT.en and children.

76. His nelegaticlI was pa:ticularly inteeested in the activities of UNDP and,
having pledged eec8ntly an 18 per cent ircrease in Austeia's conteibution, W&S keen
to see funds used as effectively a~; possiblf' for the benefit of the developing
cou ntr ies. It strong ly suppoeted the st rpnq t.hpni ng of mu 1 t i lateea 1 developmen t
c)-Operation and welcomed the continuing in, .f'L in COlltribllt..iollS to opeeat.ional
artivities.

"17. His delegation was still convinced that UNlJP eepre3ented the centeal funding
;~gency with eegaed to t.,chnical a~,sistance. It noten with inteeest the
Administeatoe':; emphasis on the :!.inks betwt:en developmtnt, population and
envieonment, a'ld looked foe"'cHd to the ee~ults of the 60-nation project being
funded by the Wr -Id Ban" and the African Development Bank with a view to reducing
some of the soc al costs ot adjustment prQcesses.

78. The Janss,:1 eeport (A/42/326/Add.1) contained important quidelines witll eeqard
to the improvement of ope~ational activities. It titressed the need foe broad-based
co-ord inat ion, which was of cent ca 1 importance ~,i th eegard to the country
progearrunes. It was to be regretted that such progeammes did not embrace the woeld
Food Peograrrune, UNICEF, Ihp technical aS3istance peovided lJy eeqional development
banks or the activities of the specialized agenc'ies. A co-oedinated countey
progearrune implied joint programming and the harmonization of operation praceduees,
peogeamme cycles and timetables. It also implled geeater donoe cc-operation. The
follow-ur to the recommendations contained in the eepoet shollld be organized on a
system-wide b",sis, and the G",neeal Assembly should be kept infoemed of the proqeess
mad(~.

79. Mr. McDOWELL (New Zealand) said that he had led one of the teamr:; conduct; nq
the case studies upon which the ,'ansc;on report was ~]a )pd. 'l'he fl. .. :-l ...mental frame of
eeference had been deve lopm(~nt, needs and processes in the develuping countries.
United Nat ions operational a.:tivities had been studi<>d in teems of the development
needs of the countries in question with a vi~w to deteemininq what the system could
do to help Go"eenml'nts design and implement the most effpr-tive intervent.ions
against poveety and undeedevelopmpnt. ThcH)(' peodllcing t.hl' stw1ies had cOllie from Cl

variety of backqeounds, shaeing only their f'xrpripnc( of development issuf's and a
belipf in thl"' ["olp of multilatpra) ~;ystc~m,; ill f.o,;\.prinq dl'vclopmpnl. A hrflild

/ ...



Ale. 2/42jSH.H
English
Page 16

IMf. McDowe 11 L New Zea 1cl lid )

consensus had emerged, however, clod the si tuat ions deficr ihed, and problf!ms
identified in the Seven case stlJdi ... s were recoqnizahle 5yfllem-wide.

80. Very frank discllssions had been heln with senior officials at the highest
l~vels and with proi~t managers and the people directly concerned. Some of the
fIndings at the report were very nisquieting. In particular, the Unilpd Nations
system had been criticized for its COllfllSinq lack of and harmonIzation of
procedures, overall strRteqy and real sy&tem-wide co-ordination. It must l'espond
to tha~ cClticism and make the necefisary improvement s. He hopea that one effect of
the Jansson CE~port would be to "demythologize" some of thl' concepts discussed in
committee rooms - country programming, co-ordination and harmonization,
decentralization of decision-making am so on .- so that more altent ion would be
paid to the cea lity of act ivities in the field.

81. The Uniteil Nations famIly p~ agencies could, however, be credithl with ~;ome

notable achievements. In the South Pacitic region, for example, individual
agencies had made a big impact, particularly in the Iwalth field. III sensitiv(>
arel".s such as national sectoral planning, a significant contribution had been made
to Governments' planning and co-ordination capacity. Countries had also received
advice itS to how to neqot'jate with large and powerful transnat.ional corpell'ations
with regard to the exploitation of mj',eral and fish resources.

82. Such achievements were made by the individuals working within the system. The
system itself had major flaws which required urgent att.ention. The Second
Committee should strongly encourage UNDP and the special ized agencIes to implement
many of the recoRlnendations of the ,Jangson reeort thniuqh a procpss of
self-examinat ion and self-improvement.. A constructive response would be to accept
that the report described accurately and honestlv the system as it appeared in the
field, and to resolve to work wtth Governments te remedy the situation. It was the
long-tf'rm credibi lity a:1l1 viability of the system .15 a whole that was at issue.

83. Th(! aqencies alone could orlly achieve so much in reforming the s~'stem. There
were many conflicting mandates, authori ties and procedure.,;. Fundamenta 1 parts of
the 1970 Consensus and other ke:' resolutions had never been put int" effect:. For
example, resolution 32/197 cont3 i.ned recolTVllendations, for inRtanee with regard to
the country-level organization of operational ac~ivitips, which, if implement.ed,
would have removed many of the prohlems being faced in the field.

84. The General ~ssembly should give some pn'liminary guidance at its current
session as to the act.i0n t'J be taken. The Second Committee should, t.herefore,
produce a dral t resolution or resolutions on operational activities indicat.ing
pos~ible approaches to imp I emf~ntat ion of the recolmnend,1t ions of the ,1ansson report
and prOViding quidancp for he gOVf'l'Il Lng b<xHl's of other organizations r,f the
system.

85. The next step should be tdken elsewher(>. In the light of the V( i se.ious
criticisms conta ined in the ,Idnssnn report of the "ay the agencies worked, ;':s
delegation wouln be followinq very closely the c()llsideration of the report by IJ'l!W

I ...



A/C.2/42/SR"31
English
p"qe 17

(Mf. McDowelL, New Zealand)

and the aqencies. The views all:el.dy expl:essed on its main findings wel:e genel:ally
extl:emely sketchy and insubst"lntial. f',~ ],:x>ke1 fOl:wal:d to fat more detailed
reactions in due course. To help el ieit such re,1clionil, 3ach I':: the seven I:eports
on which ':he .Jansson report W<JS based shOIJld in hi5 deleqa~ ion's vi ew be
ch str i huted widely. The Jansson report itself should be considered not only by the
governing bodies of the organizations in the system, but also by the Economic and
~;oclal Council, in a full-·scale debate on th'! fundamental issues at the 1988 summer
session, so that the Genf'ral Assembly could take decisive action at its forty-third
session.

86. Some of the broad issues the repol:t raised should also be discussed by the
Cou"cil's Special Commission on tl.e In-depth Study of the United Nations
Intergovernmental St.ucture and Functions in the Economic and Social Fields. The
lack of coherence within the Uni '"~d Nations system was due in part to the fact that
tile intergovernmental structure had failed to give force and effect to its
df~C i sions.

87•.Mr. KlJFUOH (Ghana) welcomed thp fact that generous contributions had been made
to United Nations operational activities for development. In particular, some of
the developing countries, including Ghana, had cJemonstratet1 theil: faith in the
system by making contributions, in spite of their difficult economic circumstances.

88. The Uni ted Nat ions Programme of Action for African Economic Recovery and
Development 1986-1990 was a challenge tn the development ugencieu. Since many of
the countl:ies concerned needed technical and other assistanCe as they embarked upon
structural adjustm~nt and policy reforms in accordance with thdt proJramme, it was
appnpriate hat the United Nations had decided 1"0 qive priority to its
implementation. It was important to stn~aml.ine and co-ordinate the various
assistance proqrammes to avoid duplication, overlapping and inefficiency.
A(;cord i I1g ly, hi s delegat ion we lcomed the report on oP(~ rat iona 1 act i v it ies.
A1though its concl usions and recommendat ions might requ ire more in-depth analysis,
hiqhly important issues had bee~ rais(·,:.

89. A number of proposals had been made wi th regard, for example, to the use of
UNDP as a framework of refel:ence for all sources ')f technical assistance within the
United Nations system, and to the ne.~d to concentrate activities funded by the
United Nations within a few priority sectors. Caution was required, however, in
order to avoid going fr.om one extreme to the other", in "ther words, from a
decent ra I i zed system t.o iI n ovel:-ce nt ral i zpd one.

90. The authority and functions of the resident c()~ordinators must. be carefully
and lysed to determine whether the UNDP resident r",presentat ive snould continue to
hold that posi tion. The resident (·o-ord inatc)[" must. hp ahlp to command the respect
of hoth the field representat i ves of United Nat ions agencies and host Governments.
Generillly speaking, any arrangements to enhance the ~fficiency of United Nations
develupment aqencies must respect the right of developing countries to determine
their r,wn objectives and priorities.

/ ...



A/C. 2/42/SR.]1
Engl ish
Page 11>

(ML Kufuor, Gha na)

Yl. He welcomed the assistance wllich UNDP haci provicif'ci to the aid co-orciination
offices of finance ministries in developing countries and fiuggesteci that t.hat
proq ramme si'ould be evC! lual:ed.

92. His deleqatior. did not support the decision t.akt"n by the International
Development Association to reduce the pay-back periods for loans (A/42/326/Add.3,
para. 10), particularly as the countries it would affect were African countries
requiring concessional flows of resources with long maturitv periods. Another
n,at ter for concern was the si tUlllt ion regard ing procu(f~ment from dev~loping

countries, which had been described as alarming. Many agencies had been unable to
provide informatian regarding the countries from which they ha~ procured equipment,
and he urged all agencies to do so as of 1 167.

93. As many of the isrues he had raised related to the mar~ate of the Special
Commission of the Economic and Social Council, he hoped that that body would not
lose sight of the fact that its prilllllry objective was to enhance the efff'(,th(!ness
of the OrganizatIon's economic and social programmes and not to curtail them.

AGEND~ ITEM 62: DEVELOPMENT AND INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC CO-OPERATION (continued)

(c) ~;~'F'ECTlVE MOBILIZATION AND INTEGRATION OF WOMEN IN DEVELOPMEN'J': REPOHTS OF
'rn: SECHETARY-GENERAL (cont inued)

Draft resolution on effective mobilization and integration of women in development
(A/C. 2/42/1,. 29)

94. 'rhe CHAIHMAN announced that Greece and Morocco had joined in sponsoring the
draft resolution.

(e) ENVIRONMEm' (cont inued)

Draft resolution on protection of the czone .!2~ (A/C.2/42/L.37)

95. 'rhe CHAlHMAN announced that Greece had joined in sponsoring the draft
r~solut ion.

(f) D~SERTIFICATION AND DROUGHT (continued)

Draft resolution on countries stricken by degertification and drought in Africa
(A/C. 2/42/[,. 24)

96. 'I'he CHAIRMAN announced that the Federa 1 Hepublic of Germany had joined in
sponsoring the draft resolution.

The meeting rose at 6.10 r.m.


